
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Mackey

AGENDA March 05, 2014

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Mackey

Minutes February 19, 2014 - Regular Minutes

Res. No. 314-1 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions.

Report Criminal Court Report - January 2014

Report Quarterly Fee Office Reports

Report Trustee Monthly Report - January 2014

Report Trustee Excess Fee Report - January 2014

Res. No. 314-2 A Resolution accepting the bids of Acme Supply Company, LTD, Bob Barker Company, Inc.,
Charm-Tex, HD, Inc. dba Pacific Concepts, Horizon Products, ICS Jail Supplies, Inc., O.D.
Taragin & Brothers, LLC, Robinson Textiles, Inc., and Uniform Manufacturing, Inc., for one (1)
year contract pricing, beginning March 21, 2014 through March 20, 2015, for clothing and
miscellaneous items for the Sheriff’s Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 314-3 A Resolution to amend the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” so as to accept the following
district roads and to establish speed limits therefore: Chirping Road, Pamper Lane and Booth
Bay Drive as extended. (1)

Res. No. 314-4 A Resolution to amend the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” so as to accept the following
district roads and to establish speed limits therefore: Union Stables Trail and Wagon Lane. (2)

Res. No. 314-5 A Resolution accepting the bid of 84 Lumber Company for six (6) months contract pricing,
beginning March 7, 2014 through September 6, 2014, for bagged Portland cement for the
Highway Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 314-6 A Resolution accepting the bids of Martin Marietta Materials, Vulcan Construction Materials,
Dunlap Stone, Inc., Apac Paving, Inc. dba Midsouth Aggregates, and Sequatchie Concrete
Service, Inc. for six (6) months contract pricing, beginning March 7, 2014 through September 6,
2014, for crushed stone and sand for the Highway Department, and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 314-7 A Resolution accepting the bids of Southeastern Materials, Inc., Hudson Materials Company,
Dunlap Stone, Inc. and Hiwassee Paving, LLC. for six (6) months contract pricing, beginning
March 7, 2014 through September 6, 2014, for asphalt road materials and authorizing the
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 314-8 A Resolution accepting the bids of Sequatchie Concrete Service, Inc., TNT Concrete, LLC and
Lambert Concrete for six (6) months contract pricing, beginning March 7, 2014 through
September 6, 2014, for ready mix concrete for the Highway Department, and authorizing the
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 314-9 A Resolution accepting the bids of Contech Engineered Solutions, LLC, Sherman Dixie Concrete
Industries, Inc. and Superior Drainage Products, Inc. for six (6) months contract pricing,
beginning March 7, 2014 through September 6, 2014, for concrete and metal culvert for the
Highway Department and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 314-10 A Resolution accepting the bid of Brooker Ford, Inc. for two (2) 4x4 utility vehicles amounting to
$62,930.00 for Emergency Services and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.



Res. No. 314-11 A Resolution for the Hamilton County S.T.A.R.S. to sell a 1993 F350 Ford ambulance which is
co-titled with the Hamilton County Government and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
documents necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 314-12 A Resolution ratifying the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for the period of January 1, 2014
through January 31, 2014, and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 314-13 A Resolution to accept the proposal of Mauldin and Jenkins, CPA for the performance of a
financial and compliance audit of County Government, County Constitutional Offices and County
School Activity Funds and to authorize the County Mayor to execute annual contracts and make
payment for said audit.

Res. No. 314-14 A Resolution proclaiming the month of March 2014 as Myeloma Awareness Month.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  February 19, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 19th day of February, 2014, a Regular 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Fred Skillern, Chairman.  County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Henry, Commissioner Mackey, and Chairman Skillern.  Total 

present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, Assistant County Attorney Dee Hobbs, and County Auditor Bill 

McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 2 

 Commissioner Henry reported that Reverend Stephen Hampton, with The 

Spiritual Assembly of Baha’is of Chattanooga, who was scheduled to give the 

invocation, was not in attendance. Commissioner Henry gave the invocation and led in 

the pledge to the flag.  

 

Chairman Skillern reported that due to inclement weather, the Commission had 

been unable to meet for their scheduled Agenda Preparation Session on Wednesday, 

February 12, 2014. All Resolutions would be considered by a Committee of the Whole 

during today’s meeting. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Fields, that 

the minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 5, 2014, be approved, treat same as 

read, made a matter of record and filed.  The foregoing Motion was unanimously 

adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission 

being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total 

absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 3 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-18  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS AND OATH OF DEPUTY 

SHERIFF. 

 

 Chairman Skillern asked for a motion. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Henry, to 

adopt Resolution No. 214-18.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

ORDER OF DESIGNATION 

 

An order was submitted for the record designating Todd Leamon to sit as the 

County Mayor’s representative on the Planning Commission for the meeting of February 

10, 2014. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 4 

QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT FOR QUARTER ENDING DECEMBER 31, 

2013. 

 

The quarterly investment report of Hamilton County government for the quarter 

ending December 31, 2013 was submitted as a matter of record of this meeting. 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-19  A RESOLUTION TO CONFIRM THE APPOINTMENT OF 

THREE MEMBERS AND REAPPOINTMENT OF TWO MEMBERS TO THE 

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY REGIONAL HEALTH COUNCIL. 

 

 Resolution No. 214-19 confirms the appointments of Pastor Kevin Adams, Donna 

Roddy, and Sandra Hollett, and the reappointments of Dr. Deborah Poteet Johnson and 

Carlos Parra to the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Health Council for four-year 

terms expiring February 19, 2018. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Henry, to 

adopt Resolution No. 214-19.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 5 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 214-34 through 214-36, be 

considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-34  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE FIRM OF ARTECH 

DESIGN GROUP, INC. FOR DESIGN OF THE DALLAS BAY FIREHALL #2 

ADDITION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-35  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE FIRM OF 

HEFFERLIN + KRONENBERG ARCHITECTS FOR DESIGN OF A NEW TRI-

COMMUNITY FIREHALL #3. 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-36  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE FIRM OF MICHAEL 

BRADY, INC. FOR DESIGN OF A NEW SALE CREEK FIREHALL HEADQUARTERS. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Henry, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 214-34 through 214-36.  The motion was not voted on at this 

time.   

  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 6 

 Chairman Skillern expressed his appreciation to the volunteer firefighters for their 

valuable service to the community.  

 

 Commissioner Boyd stated that the architectural firms involved in these projects 

had also served the community well.  He anticipated they would continue to do so in this 

matter. 

 

 The foregoing Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with 

the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0.   

 

 Mayor Coppinger recognized Bob Mullin, Chairman of the Dallas Bay Volunteer 

Fire Department Board, and Dallas Bay Chief Marcus Fritts, who were in attendance.  

 

 Members of the Commissioners shook hands with and personally thanked these 

individuals for their service. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 7 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-20  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF MOUNTAIN 

VIEW CHEVROLET FOR MODEL YEAR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING FOR MARKED 

POLICE PURSUIT SEDANS FOR HAMILTON COUNTY AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

 Chairman Skillern emphasized that these and all Resolutions had been 

thoroughly vetted by members of the Commission prior to today’s meeting.  Each 

member had individually spoken with County Mayor Coppinger or the appropriate staff 

member to avoid any appearance of Sunshine Law violations. 

 

 Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolution No. 214-20.  

 

 Upon questioning by Commissioner Graham, Sheriff Jim Hammond responded 

that each of these vehicles would be marked as patrol cars. 

 

 Chairman Skillern requested that information be provided to the Commission 

reflecting which vehicles were replaced and the mileage of those vehicles. Sheriff 

Hammond indicated this information would be collected and transmitted to the 

Commission when it became available.  He provided further explanation that a formula 

determined which vehicles were to be replaced. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 8 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 214-20.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-21  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF 

APPLIED TECHNOLOGY PARTNERS TN, LLC FOR LIDAR EQUIPMENT FOR THE 

HAMILTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE TO BE USED FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

SPEED REDUCTION OVER POSTED SPEED LIMITS IN THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

AREA AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACT 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

 Sheriff Hammond provided details regarding this request and showed a brief 

video presentation of the proposed LIDAR equipment.  He stated that LIDAR equipment 

was a hand-held, laser sensing technology used for vehicle speed enforcement. The 

equipment would be operated manually by an officer and used to collect data from 

various traffic violations including the speed, video, and photos of vehicles. He 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 9 

emphasized that this equipment would increase both officer and individual safety, as the 

officer could determine whether to pull over the vehicle operator or issue a citation by 

mail. 

 

 Sheriff Hammond reported that the setup of this program would not result in an 

increased cost to the County, as Applied Technology Partners would assume the 

responsibility of maintaining the equipment, issuing the citations, and collecting the fees. 

Of the $50 collected for a violation, $25 would be retained by the respective vendor, and 

$25 would be submitted to the County General Fund. The monies forwarded to the 

General Fund would be split with the Driver’s Education Program .  This program gave 

young drivers the opportunity to learn proven defensive driving techniques. This 

program would be for students in the unincorporated areas of the County. 

 

 Sheriff Hammond noted that the City of Chattanooga had been participating in a 

Driver’s Education Program for the past four years. He welcomed the City’s program 

coordinator, Caroline Johnson, who gave a brief explanation of the requirements a 

young driver must meet. She noted that the City’s program was completely funded by 

revenue generated by city traffic cameras. She added that over 1,800 young drivers had 

been educated through this program. The overall cost of the program per driver was 

$400.  Of that amount, $50 was paid by the young driver or their parents, with the 

remainder being funded through traffic camera revenue.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 10 

 Commissioner Boyd strongly shared various concerns including splitting revenue 

with a private entity, how the citation would be issued, and the anticipated minimum 

amount of citations. 

 

 Sheriff Hammond and John McConnell, CEO/President of Applied Technology 

Partners, responded to lengthy questioning by members of the Commission regarding 

the application of this program. Mr. McConnell emphasized that the officer would still be 

required to witness any misdemeanor offense and would appear in court if needed.  He 

also added that the proposed contract was written so that it would be easy for the 

County to opt-out if they so desired.  

 

 Commissioner Beck commended Sheriff Hammond for his efforts to increase 

officer safety. He asked whether Sheriff Hammond anticipated his officers using this 

technology to meet a quota of citations issued. Sheriff Hammond responded that his 

administration did not have quotas, nor did he allow them.  

  

 Captain Charles Lowery, Jr., Traffic Division Supervisor, addressed the 

Commission to provide additional details regarding how and where the LIDAR 

equipment would be utilized. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 11 

 Commissioner Graham shared his opinion that it was too early for Hamilton 

County to adopt this technology and indicated he would not be supporting the 

Resolution. 

 

 Captain Lowery responded to questioning by Commissioner Henry regarding 

camera use and LIDAR citation statistics.   

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

adopt Resolution No. 214-21.  The motion was not voted on at this time.   

 

 Commissioner Fields asked whether any studies had been performed on how 

this program would affect the amount of revenue collected to the General Fund.  Sheriff 

Hammond replied that he did not anticipate a significant effect to the General Fund, 

because the funding would be used in areas where it was previously considered too 

dangerous for officers to issue citations.  He did indicate that these figures would be 

monitored. He also added that there would be a total of two LIDAR cameras using this 

technology in the county. 

 

 Upon questioning by Commissioner Haynes, Assistant County Attorney Hobbs 

stated that there was no present evidence that suggested that these devices were 

unconstitutional, although they tended to be unpopular with the public. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 12 

 Chairman Skillern asked who would be responsible for collecting the fees. Mr. 

McConnell responded that Applied Technology Partners would collect fees and work 

with a collections agency for those who do not pay the citation. 

 

 The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “No”; 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “No”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “No”; and Chairman 

Skillern, “No”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 5.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 4.   

 

 Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 214-22 through 214-24, be 

considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-22  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF DELL 

MARKETING, LP FOR KACE VIRTUAL APPLIANCES AMOUNTING TO $94,043.31 

FOR THE INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 13 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-23  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH THE ATLANTIC GROUP, LLC TO PROVIDE 

HAMILTON COUNTY WITH GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM COLOR AND 

COLOR INFRARED DIGITAL ORTHOPHOTOGRAPHY FOR HAMILTON COUNTY 

AT A COST OF $148,213.11 AND TO AMEND THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

PARTNERSHIP BUDGET BY ADDING $98,213.11 TO REVENUE AND $98,213.11 

TO EXPENDITURES. 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-24  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE UNIT PRICE BID OF 

SHIELDS ELECTRONICS FOR BOGEN EQUIPMENT FOR THE PERIOD 

BEGINNING FEBRUARY 19, 2014 THROUGH FEBRUARY 18, 2015, WITH THE 

OPTION TO RENEW FOR ONE (1) ADDITIONAL ONE YEAR TERM FOR THE 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS OFFICE AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

 Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolution No. 214-22.  

 

 Upon questioning by Commissioner Graham, Information Technology Services 

Director Brian Turner responded that there would be an annual maintenance fee 

associated with Resolution No. 214-22.  He was uncertain what the fee was at this time.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 14 

Commissioner Graham stated it may be beneficial to defer this item in order to obtain 

further information. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Henry, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

defer Resolution No. 214-22 until Wednesday, February 26, 2014.  The foregoing 

motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the 

County Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present 

– 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolutions No. 214-23 and 214-24.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 214-23 and 214-24.  The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 15 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 214-25 and 214-26, be considered 

together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-25  A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MASTER LIST OF 

ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS” SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT 

ROADS AND TO ESTABLISH SPEED LIMITS THEREFOR: GRAPESHOT DRIVE, 

SOLIDSHOT COURT. (3) 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-26  A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MASTER LIST OF 

ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS” BY CHANGING THE SPEED LIMIT OF HOPI TRAIL, 

HIDEAWAY ROAD, AND PAW PAW TRAIL FROM 30 MILES PER HOUR TO 25 

MILES PER HOUR. 

 

 Commissioner Bankston, Chairman of the Roads Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolutions No. 214-25 and 214-26.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 214-23 and 214-24.  The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 16 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 214-27 through 214-29, be 

considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-27  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO INCREASE THE CONTRACT WITH BARGE, WAGGONER, SUMNER & 

CANNON, INC. FOR THE DESIGN OF THE TENNESSEE RIVERPARK DOWNTOWN 

SEGMENT TO INCLUDE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 

SERVICES FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $317,500.00 OF PREVIOUSLY 

BUDGETED FUNDS. 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-28  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO INCREASE THE CONTRACT WITH BARGE, WAGGONER, SUMNER & 

CANNON, INC. FOR THE DESIGN OF THE TENNESSEE RIVERPARK DOWNTOWN 

SEGMENT TO INCLUDE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING INSPECTION (CEI) 

SERVICES FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $720,000.00 OF PREVIOUSLY 

BUDGETED FUNDS. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 17 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-29  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE STATE OF TENNESSEE, 

DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY, TENNESSEE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

AGENCY, AND HAMILTON COUNTY IN THE AMOUNT OF $148,000 (ONE 

HUNDRED AND FORTY EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS). 

 

 Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolutions No. 214-27 through 214-29.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, 

to adopt Resolutions No. 214-27 through 214-29.  The motion was not voted on at this 

time. 

 

 Commissioner Boyd stated that there were numerous times throughout the year 

when Barge, Waggoner, Sumner, & Cannon contracts were increased. He requested 

further information regarding how these contracts had been set up. 

 

 County Engineer Todd Leamon responded that these would be the final two 

increases for the Tennessee Riverwalk project and would cover certain constructions 

costs. He stated that after the initial contract was created and adopted by the 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 18 

Commission, any subsequent changes would come back before the Commission for 

consideration. 

 

 The foregoing Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with 

the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-30  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BROOKER 

FORD, INC. FOR THREE (3) 4X4 UTILITY VEHICLES AMOUNTING TO $94,395.00 

FOR EMERGENCY SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THE RESOLUTION. 

 

 Chairman Skillern reported that Resolution No. 214-30 had been withdrawn. 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-31  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE A LETTER OF AGREEMENT WITH 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 19 

THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH FOR THE PROVISION OF 

TOBACCO PREVENTION SERVICES FOR THE TIME PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 

2014 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2017, ACCEPTING FUNDS IN AN AMOUNT OF 

$285,165 PER YEAR, AND AMENDING THE 2013/2014 BUDGET BY INCREASING 

REVENUES BY $285,165 AND EXPENSES BY $81,197 WITH THE REMAINING 

REVENUE BALANCE CARRYING FORWARD INTO THE 2014/2015 FISCAL YEAR. 

 

 Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolution No. 214-31.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 214-31.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 214-32 and 214-33, be considered 

together at this time. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 20 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-32  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE A CONTRACT FOR $70,600 WITH 

THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH FOR THE PROVISION OF 

COMMUNITY HEALTH PREVENTION SERVICES FOR THE TIME PERIOD 

BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2014 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2018, ACCEPTING FUNDS IN 

AN AMOUNT OF $70,600 PER YEAR, AND AMENDING THE 2013/2014 BUDGET BY 

INCREASING REVENUES BY $70,600 AND EXPENSES BY $70,600. 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-33  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT OF 

FORTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($45,000.00) IN SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 

AGAINST HAMILTON COUNTY AND THE HAMILTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 

AS BROUGHT BY CECIL VANCE FOR PERSONAL INJURIES. 

 

 Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolutions No. 214-32 and 214-33.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 214-32 and 214-33.  The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 21 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO.  214-37  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO INCREASE PAYMENT TO PSC METALS, INC. FOR TWO (2) EASEMENTS IN 

THE AMOUNT OF $50,000 REQUIRED FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE TENNESSEE 

RIVERWALK DOWNTOWN SEGMENT PHASE 1 AND 2. 

 

 Chairman Skillern pointed out that the figure of $50,000 had been added to the 

Resolution. This figure had not been available until recently. He stated that this 

Resolution would be heard as a Committee of the Whole. 

 

  ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 214-37.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 22 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Haynes announced that Hixson High School wrestling team had 

recently won the State Championship for the AA classification this past weekend. He 

congratulated them on this accomplishment.   

 

Commissioner Graham added that the Lookout Valley High School basketball 

team was also currently performing very well in their tournament. 

 

Commissioner Graham spoke regarding Resolutions No. 214-27 and 214-28.  He 

commended County Engineer Leamon and other staff for their diligent work on the 

Tennessee Riverpark downtown segment project. 

 

Members of the Commission and Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding the recent 

snowy weather events last week experienced throughout Hamilton County and the 

surrounding areas.  Each expressed their appreciation to the Highway Department for 

their hard work to serve the public and clear the roads during that time.  Additionally, 

thanks were given to the Sheriff’s Department and volunteer fire and rescue personnel 

for their assistance to citizens. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 23 

Commissioner Beck noted that today was County Trustee Bill Hullander’s 

birthday. He suggested that the Commission office send a card to Trustee Hullander on 

this occasion.  

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Rick Carpenter, a resident at 3119 Chicalilly Drive, who had previously 

addressed the Commission relating to a problem with WWTA, approached the podium 

and asked to be heard again regarding an issue with WWTA counsel Chris Clem. 

 

Chairman Skillern replied that the Commission did not have any authority over 

the WWTA.  He suggested that Mr. Carpenter contact either the WWTA Board or the 

Sheriff’s Department with any concerns. 

 

After Mr. Carpenter incorrectly referred to Mr. Clem as the County’s attorney, 

Assistant County Attorney Dee Hobbs clarified that Mr. Clem was not affiliated with the 

Hamilton County Attorney’s office. 

 

There being no further business, Chairman Skillern declared the meeting in 

recess until Wednesday, February 26, 2014 at 9:30 AM.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

 

 24 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

____________________________________    
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

Approved: 
   

_______   
Date     Clerk’s Initials 

 
 



 

 

No. 314-1 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS. 
 
   
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
 2. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 

















































































 

 

No. 314-2 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF ACME SUPPLY COMPANY, LTD, BOB BARKER COMPANY, INC., 
CHARM-TEX, HD INC. DBA PACIFIC CONCEPTS, HORIZON PRODUCTS, ICS JAIL SUPPLIES, INC., O.D. 
TARAGIN & BROTHERS, LLC, ROBINSON TEXTILES, INC., AND UNIFORM MANUFACTURING, INC., FOR 
ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 21, 2014, THROUGH MARCH 20, 2015, FOR 
CLOTHING AND MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS FOR THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year contract 

pricing for clothing and miscellaneous items for the jail; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Acme Supply Company, LTD, Bob Barker Company, Inc., Charm-Tex, 

HBD, Inc. dba Pacific Concepts, Horizon Products, ICS Jail Supplies, Inc., O.D. Taragin & 
Brothers, LLC., Robinson Textiles, Inc., and Uniform Manufacturing, Inc.,  were 
considered to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Acme Supply Company, LTD, Bob Barker Company, Inc., Charm-Tex, HBD Inc. dba 
Pacific Concepts, Horizon Products, ICS Jail Supplies, Inc., O.D. Taragin & Brothers, LLC, Robinson 
Textiles, Inc., and Uniform Manufacturing, Inc. for one (1) year contract pricing, beginning March 21, 
2014, through March 20, 2015, for clothing and miscellaneous items for the Sheriff’s Department are 
hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids received, and authorizing the County Mayor 
to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE 
PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 









































 

 

No. 314-3 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 12, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED 
LIMITS” SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT ROADS AND TO 
ESTABLISH SPEED LIMITS THEREFORE: Chirping Road, Pamper Lane and Booth 
Bay Drive as extended.  
 
WHEREAS, The above listed roads are new subdivision roads in the Sedman Hill 

Subdivision and have been inspected by the Hamilton County Division 
of Public Works and meet current County Subdivision Regulations; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the list of roads, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference thereto as though fully and completely copied 
verbatim herein, completely describes the amendments to be made to 
the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits”. 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 1. That the above named roads be declared district roads, 2nd class. 
 
 2. That the attached amendments to the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” 

are hereby adopted and approved. 
 
 3. That the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” is hereby amended. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 12, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
ROAD NAME                          DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Chirping Road Chirping Road is in the 3rd Civil District, the 

1st County Commission District in the 
Sedman Hill Subdivision on State Tax Map 
Number 74, leading from Booth Bay Drive 
east 0.19 miles to a turnaround, has a 50 foot 
right-of-way, a 8 inch stone base, a 2 inch  
plant mix pavement with concrete curbs, and 
was built by Barry Higgins Construction and 
Card Paving Company for the developer 
Fatherson Partnership. 

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 

M.P.H. and that violation of the same, when 
posted, shall be a misdemeanor and 
punishable as such as provided by the laws 
of the State. 

 
 
 
 
Pamper Lane Pamper Lane is in the 3rd Civil District, the 

1st County Commission District in the 
Sedman Hill Subdivision on State Tax Map 
Number 74, leading from Booth Bay Drive 
west 0.02 miles to a turnaround, has a 40 
foot right-of-way, a 8 inch stone base, a 2 
inch plant mix pavement with concrete 
curbs, and was built by Barry Higgins 
Construction and Card Paving Company for 
the developer Fatherson Partnership. 

 
 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 15 

M.P.H. and that violation of the same, when 
posted, shall be a misdemeanor and 
punishable as such as provided by the laws 
of the State. 



 

 
 
                          
 
 ROAD NAME                                             DESCRIPTION 
 
   
Booth Bay Drive A Resolution dated November 18, 2009 

shows the mileage of Booth Bay Drive as 
being 0.20 miles, described as leading from 
Sedman Road north to a temporary 
turnaround; and, whereas, a new extension 
of Booth Bay Drive was constructed leading 
from the existing Booth Bay Drive west 0.28 
miles to Chirping Road, has a 50 foot right-
of-way, a 8 inch stone base, a 2 inch  plant 
mix pavement with concrete curbs, and was 
built by Barry Higgins Construction and 
Card Paving for the developer Fatherson 
Partnership; and, whereas, Booth Bay Drive 
is in the 3rd   Civil District, the 1st County 
Commission District in the Sedman Hill 
Subdivision on State Tax Map Number 74, 
as being 0.48 miles  leading from Sedman 
Road north to  a turnaround.  

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 

M.P.H. and that violation of the same, when 
posted, shall be a misdemeanor and 
punishable as such as provided by the laws 
of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 

 

No. 314-4 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 12, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED 
LIMITS” SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT ROADS AND TO 
ESTABLISH SPEED LIMITS THEREFORE: Union Stables Trail and Wagon Lane. 
 
 
WHEREAS, The above listed roads are new subdivision roads in the Union Stables 

Subdivision and have been inspected by the Hamilton County Division 
of Public Works and meet current County Subdivision Regulations; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the list of roads, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference thereto as though fully and completely copied 
verbatim herein, completely describes the amendments to be made to 
the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits”. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 1. That the above named roads be declared district  roads, 2nd class. 
 
 2. That the attached amendments to the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” 

are hereby adopted and approved. 
 
 3. That the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” is hereby amended. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 12, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 
 
ROAD NAME                                                                     DESCRIPTION 
  
 
Union Stables Trail  Union Stables Trail is in the 3rd Civil 

District, the 2nd County Commission 
District, in the Union Stables Subdivision on 
State Tax Map Number 80, leading from 
Corral Road south 0.07 miles to Wagon 
Lane, has a 50 foot  right-of-way, a 8 inch  
stone base, a 2 inch plant mix pavement 
with concrete curbs, and was built by Brad 
Higgins Construction and Lofty Grading & 
Paving for the developer Jim Morrison. 

 
 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 

M.P.H. and that violation of the same, when 
posted, shall be a misdemeanor and 
punishable as such as provided by the laws 
of the State. 

 
 Wagon Lane Wagon Lane is in the 3rd Civil District, the 

2nd County Commission District, in the 
Union Stables Subdivision on State Tax 
Map Number 80, leading from Union 
Stables Trail east and west 0.13 miles to two 
turnarounds, has a 50 foot  right-of-way, a 8 
inch  stone base, a 2 inch  plant mix 
pavement with concrete curbs, and was built 
by Brad Higgins Construction and Lofty 
Grading & Paving for the developer Jim 
Morrison. 

 
 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 

M.P.H. and that violation of the same, when 
posted, shall be a misdemeanor and 
punishable as such as provided by the laws 
of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

No. 314-5 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF 84 LUMBER  COMPANY FOR SIX (6) 
MONTHS CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 7, 2014, THROUGH 
SEPTEMBER 6, 2014, FOR BAGGED PORTLAND CEMENT FOR THE HIGHWAY 
DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS,  bids were received in response to public advertisement for six (6) months 

contract pricing for bagged Portland cement for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from 84 Lumber Company was considered to be the lowest and best bid 

received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of 84 Lumber Company for six (6) months contract pricing, beginning March 7, 
2014, through September 6, 2014, for bagged Portland cement for the Highway Department is 
hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County 
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 























 

 

No. 314-6 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF MARTIN MARIETTA MATERIALS, VULCAN 
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS, DUNLAP STONE, INC., APAC PAVING, INC. dba MIDSOUTH 
AGGREGATES, AND SEQUATCHIE CONCRETE SERVICE, INC. FOR SIX (6) MONTHS 
CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 7, 2014, THROUGH SEPTEMBER 6, 2014, FOR 
CRUSHED STONE AND SAND FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT, AND AUTHORIZING 
THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for six months contract pricing 

for crushed stone and sand for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Martin Marietta Materials, Vulcan Construction Materials, Dunlap 

Stone, Inc., Apac Paving, Inc. dba  Midsouth Aggregates, and Sequatchie Concrete 
Service, Inc. were considered to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Martin Marietta Materials, Vulcan Construction Materials, Dunlap Stone, Inc., Apac 
Paving, Inc. dba Midsouth Aggregates, and Sequatchie Concrete Services, Inc. for six (6) months 
contract pricing, beginning March 7, 2014, through September 6, 2014, for crushed stone and sand for 
the Highway Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids received, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 























 

 

No. 314-7 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF SOUTHEASTERN MATERIALS, INC., HUDSON 
MATERIALS COMPANY, DUNLAP STONE, INC. AND HIWASSEE PAVING, LLC. FOR SIX (6) 
MONTHS CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 7, 2014, THROUGH SEPTEMBER 6, 
2014, FOR ASPHALT ROAD MATERIALS AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for six (6) months contract 

pricing for asphalt road materials for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids of Southeastern Materials, Inc., Hudson Materials Company,  Dunlap Stone, 

Inc. and Hiwassee Paving, LLC were considered to be the lowest and best bids 
received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Southeastern Materials, Inc., Hudson Materials Company, Dunlap Stone, Inc. and 
Hiwassee Paving, LLC for six months contract pricing, beginning March 7, 2014, through September 
6, 2014, for asphalt road materials for the Highway Department are hereby accepted, said bids being 
the lowest and best bids received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to 
implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 

























 

 

No. 314-8 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF SEQUATCHIE CONCRETE SERVICE, INC., TNT 
CONCRETE, LLC AND LAMBERT CONCRETE FOR SIX (6) MONTHS CONTRACT PRICING, 
BEGINNING MARCH 7, 2014 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 6, 2014, FOR READY MIX CONCRETE 
FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT, AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for six months contract pricing 

for ready mix concrete for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Sequatchie Concrete Service, Inc., TNT Concrete, LLC and Lambert 

Concrete were considered to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Sequatchie Concrete Service, Inc., TNT Concrete, LLC and Lambert Concrete for six 
(6) months contract pricing, beginning March 7, 2014, through September 6, 2014, for ready mix 
concrete for the Highway Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids 
received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 

























 

 

No. 314-9 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF CONTECH ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS, 
LLC, SHERMAN DIXIE CONCRETE INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUPERIOR DRAINAGE 
PRODUCTS, INC. FOR SIX (6) MONTHS CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 
7, 2014, THROUGH SEPTEMBER 6, 2014, FOR CONCRETE AND METAL CULVERT 
FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 
TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
  
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for six months contract 

pricing for concrete and metal culvert for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Contech Engineered Solutions, LLC, Sherman Dixie Concrete 

Industries, Inc. and Superior Drainage Products, Inc. were considered to be the 
lowest and best bids received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Contech Engineered Solutions, LLC, Sherman Dixie Concrete Industries, Inc., 
and Superior Drainage Products, Inc. for six (6) months contract pricing, beginning March 7, 
2014, through September 6, 2014, for concrete and metal culvert for the Highway Department 
are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids received, and authorizing the 
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 































 

 

No. 314-10 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BROOKER FORD, INC. FOR TWO (2) 4X4 
UTILITY VEHICLES AMOUNTING TO $62,930.00 FOR EMERGENCY SERVICES AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for 4X4 utility 

vehicles for Emergency Services/EMS; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Brooker Ford, Inc. amounting to $31,465.00 each was 

considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Brooker Ford, Inc. for two (2) 4X4 utility vehicles amounting to $62,930.00 for 
Emergency Services is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 





























 

 

No. 314-11 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

 
A RESOLUTION  FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY STARS TO SELL A 1993 FORD 
F-350 AMBULANCE WHICH IS CO-TITLED WITH THE HAMILTON COUNTY 
GOVERNMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION.                                                
 
WHEREAS, A 1993 FORD AMBULANCE TAG NUMBER GP-2866 VIN #  

 1FDKF37M5PNB26999 WITH SAID MILEAGE OF 225,000; AND, 
 
WHEREAS, THE HAMILTON COUNTY STARS DESIRE THAT SAID VEHICLE BE 

SOLD AND,  
 
WHEREAS, IN THE AMOUNT CONSIDERED ECONOMICALLY FAIR AND, 
 
WHEREAS, THAT SAID MONIES FROM THE SALE OF THE VEHICLE BE 

UTILIZED TO PURCHASE FUTURE VEHICLE;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

(1) That Hamilton County’s interest in said vehicle be terminated by sale in an “as     
is” condition; and,   
                         

(2) That if sold by the Hamilton County STARS, said vehicle be sold in a    
commercially reasonable manner and the proceeds applied to the future 
purchase of vehicle by and for the Hamilton County STARS. 

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 314-12 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE 
PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2014, THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2014, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department was authorized to make purchases of petroleum products 

on the open market; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the following purchases were made between January 1, 2014, through January 31, 

2014.  
 
 January 6, 2014, $21,801.74 for 8,635 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.524811 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 January 10, 2014, $2,371.07 for 793 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.990 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 January 13, 2014, $22,055.30 for 8,532 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.585009 per 

gallon from Jat Oil & Supply, Inc. 
 
 January 15, 2014, $21,696.79 for 8,569 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.532009 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
  
 January 16, 2014, $19,217.42 for 7,568 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.5393 per gallon 

from Mansfield Oil Company. 
 
 January 16, 2014, $1,327.60 for 400 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 3.319009 

per gallon from Jat Oil & Supply, Inc. 
 
 January 16, 2014, $3,484.96 for 1,050 gallons of regular unleaded at 3.319009 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
  
  



 

 

 

 

 
 
 January 16, 2014, $902.45 for 255 gallons of diesel fuel at 3.5390 per gallon from Jat 

Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 January 21, 2014, $21,819.21 for 7,359 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.96497 per gallon 

from Parman Lubricants. 
 
 January 22, 2014, $814.21 for 280 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.9079 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 January 22, 2014, $801.98 for 250 gallons of diesel fuel at 3.2079 per gallon from Jat 

Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 January 22, 2014, $21,821.99 for 7,380 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.956909 per gallon 

from Parman Lubricants. 
 
 January 30, 2014, $22,360.75 for 7,317 gallons of diesel fuel at 3.0560 per gallon from 

Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That the above purchases be ratified in the best interest of Hamilton County, and the County Mayor is 
authorized to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 







 

 

No. 314-13 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL OF MAULDIN AND JENKINS, CPA FOR THE 
PERFORMANCE OF A FINANCIAL AND COMPLIANCE AUDIT OF COUNTY GOVERNMENT, 
COUNTY CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICES AND COUNTY SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS AND TO 
AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE ANNUAL CONTRACTS AND MAKE 
PAYMENT FOR SAID AUDIT. 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were received in response to public advertisement for five (5) one year 

contract periods for performance of a financial and compliance audit of Hamilton 
County Government, Hamilton County Constitutional Offices and Hamilton County 
School Activity Funds; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  an analysis of all proposals received was performed by the County Auditor and the 

County Finance Administrator; and, 
 
WHEREAS, based on this analysis it is recommended that the proposal of Mauldin and Jenkins, 

CPA be accepted; and 
 
WHEREAS, sufficient funds are annually budgeted for such an audit. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 

1. That the proposal of Mauldin and Jenkins, CPA for the performance of a financial and 
compliance audit of Hamilton County Government, Hamilton County Constitutional Offices and 
Hamilton County School Activity Funds and the optional assistance in preparation of the CAFR 
is hereby accepted, said proposal being the lowest and best proposal received, and authorizing 
the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 

 
2. That the proposal will cover a five-year period, on a year-to-year basis, beginning with the fiscal 

year ending June 30, 2014, and ending with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018; 
 

3. That the fees for the financial and compliance audit and the optional service of preparing the 
CAFR for  each of the fiscal years ending June 30, 2014 through 2018 shall not exceed the 
following: 



 

 

 

 

 
 

Financial and 
Compliance 

Audit

Preparation 
of CAFR 
(optional)

Fiscal Year 2014 157,750$       5,000$         
Fiscal Year 2015 164,000        5,000           
Fiscal Year 2016 168,000        5,000           
Fiscal Year 2017 171,250        5,000           
Fiscal Year 2018 173,250        5,000           

 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 











 

 

No. 314-14 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING THE MONTH OF MARCH 2014 AS MYELOMA 
AWARENESS MONTH  
 
WHEREAS,  Multiple myeloma (or myeloma), the second most common blood cancer  
  worldwide, is a cancer of plasma cells in the bone marrow.  It is called 
  “multiple” because the cancer can occur at multiple sites.  
   
WHEREAS, Multiple myeloma currently affects more than 100,000 people in the United 

States, with an estimated 20,000 new cases diagnosed each year and 10,000 
 losing their battle each year; AND 
 

WHEREAS, Once a disease of the elderly, it is now being found in increasing numbers in  
  people under 65; AND 
 
WHEREAS, Because myeloma is a rare disease there can be a delayed diagnosis, leading to 
  delayed treatment.  For this reason an increased awareness of myeloma for the  
  clinicians and the general public will lead to earlier diagnosis allowing people 
  to live longer; AND 
 
WHEREAS, Continued investment and innovation is critical to achieve early diagnosis and  
  the most effective and safest treatments for myeloma patients; AND 
 
WHEREAS, Although we have seen important advances in the last decade there is still no  
  cure for myeloma; AND 
 
THUS,  The State of Tennessee is committed to finding a cure for myeloma and 
  supports the treatment of its citizens that suffer from myeloma and encourages 
  private efforts to enhance research funding and education programs; AND 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
  That the Board of County Commissioners do hereby proclaim the month of  
  March, 2014 as MYELOMA AWARENESS MONTH in Hamilton County,  
  Tennessee, and encourage all residents to join us in participating in voluntary  
  activities to support myeloma education and the funding of research programs 
  to find a cure. 



 

 

 

 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.   
  

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 


	Public Agenda 3-5-14
	314-_S_Minutes_February 19 2014 Regular Minutes_683_02-19-14 Regular
	314-1_R_County Clerk_Notary Public_682_03-05-14
	314-1_S_County Clerk_Notary Public_682_03-05-14 A
	314-_S_Report_Criminal Court Report 2014_676_Criminal Court Clerk Report - January 2014
	314-_S_Report_Reports  Quarterly Fee Office Reports_661_Fee Office Reports
	314-_S_Report_January 2014 Trustee Monthly Report_666_January 2014 Trustee Monthly Report
	314-_S_Report_January 2014 Trustee Excess Fee Report_667_January 2014 Trustee Excess Fee Report
	314-2_R_Sheriff Hammond_Clothing and Miscellaneous Items for the Jail_679_RES. CLOTHING & MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS 3-5-14
	314-2_S_Sheriff Hammond_Clothing and Miscellaneous Items for the Jail_679_Clothing & Misc. Items 3-5-14
	314-3_R_Todd Leamon_Roads_668_sedmanhillsubdivision_resolution
	314-3_S_Todd Leamon_Roads_668_SedmanHill2-14_summary
	314-4_R_Todd Leamon_Roads_669_unionstables_resolution
	314-4_S_Todd Leamon_Roads_669_UnionStables2-14_supportingdoc
	The speed limit on said road shall be 20 M.P.H. and that violation of the same, when posted, shall be a misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided by the laws of the State.
	The speed limit on said road shall be 20 M.P.H. and that violation of the same, when posted, shall be a misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided by the laws of the State.

	314-5_R_Todd Leamon_Bagged Portland Cement_670_RES. BAGGED PORTLAND CEMENT 3-5-14
	314-5_S_Todd Leamon_Bagged Portland Cement_670_Bagged Portland Cement
	314-6_R_Todd Leamon_Crushed Stone and Sand Contract_671_RES. CRUSHED STONE & SAND 3-5-14
	314-6_S_Todd Leamon_Crushed Stone and Sand Contract_671_Crushed Stone & Sand
	314-7_R_Todd Leamon_Asphalt Road Materials Contract_672_RES. ASPHALT ROAD MATERIALS 3-5-14
	314-7_S_Todd Leamon_Asphalt Road Materials Contract_672_Asphalt Road Materials
	314-8_R_Todd Leamon_Ready Mix Concrete Contract_673_RES. READY MIX CONCRETE 3-5-14
	314-8_S_Todd Leamon_Ready Mix Concrete Contract_673_Ready Mix Concrete
	314-9_R_Todd Leamon_Concrete and Metal Culvert Contract_674_RES. CULVERT 3-5-14
	314-9_S_Todd Leamon_Concrete and Metal Culvert Contract_674_Culvert Contract
	314-10_R_Don Allen_Two (2) 4X4 Utility Vehicles_675_RES (2) 4X4 Utility Vehicles 3-5-14
	314-10_S_Don Allen_Two (2) 4X4 Utility Vehicles_675_(2) 4X4 Utility Vehicles
	314-11_R_Don Allen_Sale of a 1993 F350 Ford Ambulance_681_for Hamilton County STARS
	314-12_R_Louis Wright_Fuel January 2014_677_Fuel Resolution January 2014
	314-12_S_Louis Wright_Fuel January 2014_677_Fuel Resolution Jan 2014 supporting docs
	314-13_R_Bill McGriff_Audit Services_678_RES. AUDIT SERVICES
	314-13_S_Bill McGriff_Audit Services_678_Audit Services
	314-14_R_Commissioner Skillern_Myeloma Awareness Month_627_Myeloma Awareness Resolution

